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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FALIFORNIA ﬁ
2
June 2014 Grand Jury .
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Case No. 1D (R282 j BAS
Plaintiff, I N 25 CTMENT 3
v. ‘ Title 18, U.S.C., Sec. 371 ~
- Conspiracy to Commit Honest
RONALD GRUSD (1), Services Mail Fraud, Mail Fraud
GONZALO PAREDES ({2}, and Violate Travel Act; Title 18,
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ (3), U.8.C., Secs. 1341 and 1346 -
RUBEN MARTINEZ {(4), Honest Serxvices Mail Fraud;
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK Title 18, U.S.C.,
MEDICAL GROUP (5), Sec. 1952(a) (1) {A) and {(a) (3) (A) -
WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY (6), Travel Act; Title 18, U.S.C.
LINE OF SIGHT, INC. (7), | Ssec. 2 - Aiding and Abettlng,
DESERT BLUE MOON (8), | Title 18, U.S.C.
' ' Sec. 981(a) 1)(C), and Title 28,
Defendants. U.S.C., Sec. 2461{(c) - Criminal
‘ Forfeiture

The Grand Jury charges, at all times relevant:

INTRODUCTCORY ALLEGATIONS

THE DEFENDANTS AND OTHER PARTICIPANTS
1. Defendant RONALD GRUSD (“GRUSD”) was a physician whd had
been licensed by the State of California since 1987. 'Defehdant
GRUSD’s primary area of practice was radiology, and he was certified
by the BAmerican Board of Radiology in Diagnostic and Nucléar

Radiology. Defendant GRUSD was an officer of several entities,

VHC:CPH:FAS: {2)nlv:San Diego
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including defendants CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP and

WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY, and Oaks Diagnostics and Advanced

‘Radiology.

2. Defendant GONZALO PAREDES ("PAREDES”) was an administrator
for several of defendant GRUSD's entities, including deféndants
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL @GROUP and WILLOWS CONSULTING
COMPANY, and Advanced Radiology.
| 3. Defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ worked as a marketer and
administrator on behalf of Dr. A, a licensed chiropractor with three

¢linics in the Southern District of California. Defendant ALEXANDER

MARTINEZ owned and operated defendant LINE OF SIGHT, INC., a

professibnal corporation incorporated in Nevada whose principal piace
of business was in Calexico, California. |

4, Defendant RUBEN MARTINEZ worked as a marketer for Dr. A,
soliciting patients for treatment qt. Dr. A’'s clinie in Calexico,
California. Defendant RUBEN MARTINEZ owned and operated defendant
DESERT BLUE MOON, a professional corporation incorporated in NWevada.

5. Defendant = CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL QROUP
(*CALIFORNTA IMAGING NETWORK”) was a California Corporation formed in
August 2007, which listed on its website locaﬁions in Los Angeles,
Beverly Hills, San Diego, Fresno, Rialto, Saﬁta. Ana, S8tudio City,
Bakersfield, Calexico, East Log BAngeles, Lancaster, Victorville and
visalia. According to its website, defendant CALTFORNIA IMAGING
NETWORK's principal business address was 8641 Wilshire Blvd., Ste.
105, Beverly Hills, California. 'Among the wvarious services defendant
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK offered were diagnostic imaging services
and.“Extracorporeal Shockwave Therapy.” Defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING
NETWORK listed defendant GRUSD as its chief executive officer, chief

2
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financial officer, secretary and only director. Defendant GRUSD was
also the signatgry on defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK's bank
accounts,

6. Defendant WILLOWS CONSULTING éOMPANY (“WILLOWS CONSULTING")
wag a California cofporation, Formed in June 2011, which listed 8641
Wilshire Blvd., Ste. 105, Beverly Hills, California as ite principal
business address. Defendant GRUSD was listed ag its president and the
only signatory on defendant WILLOWS CONSULTING’s bank accounts.

7. Defendant LINE OF SIGHT, INC., é Nevada Corporation formed
in October 2010, listed defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ as a director.
Defendant LINE OF SIGHT's principal place of business was in Calexico,
California, and defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ was the only authorized
signatory on ‘defendant LINE OF SIGHT's bank accounts.

é. ﬁefendant DESERT BLUE MOON, a Nevada Corporation formed in
August 2001, listed defendant RUBEN MARTINEZ as a director. Defendant
RUBEN MARTINEZ was the only authorized signatory on_DESERi BLUE MOON's
bank accounﬁs.

9. The Oaks Diagnostics, a California corporation formed in
1989 and doing business as Advanced Radiology, listed 8641 Wilshire
Blvd.,, S8te. 105, Beverly Hills, California as its principal business
address. Advanced Radiology provided Shockwave, nerve conduction
velocity and electromyography testing and diagnostic imaging services.
Advanced Radiology listed defendant GRUSD as its president. Defendant
GRUSD was the only authorized signatory on Advanced Radiology'’s bank
accounts.

10, Dr. A was a éhiropractor licensed to practice in California,

who operated three clinics specializing in chiropractic medicine,
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11, Physiciang, including medical doctors and chiropractors,
owed a fiduciary duty to their patients, requiring physiciansAto act
in their patients’ best interests, and not for their own professional,
pecuniary, or personal gain. Physicians owed a duty of honest
services to their patients for decisions made relating to the care of
those patients, including the informed choice as to whether to undergo
ancillary wmedical procedures and, 1f so, an informed choice as to the
providers of such-anéillary medical procedures,
| 12. Defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT
and DESERT BLUE MOON worked with and on behalf of Dr. A in the
referral of workers’ compensation patients for ancillary medical
procedures.

CALIFQRNIA WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM

13. The ' California Workers!' Compensation  System (“cwes?)
required that employers in California provide workers’ compensation
benefits to their employees for qualifying injuries sustained in the

course of their employment. Under the CWCS, all claims for payments

for services or benefits provided tc the injured ehployee, including

medical and legal fees, were billed directly to, and paid by, the
insurer. Most unpaid claims for payment were permitted to be filed as
liens against the employee’s workers' compensation claim, which accrue

interest until paid in an amount ordered by the Workers' Compensation

Appeals Board or an amount negotiated between the insurer and the

service or Dbenefits provider. The CWCS was requlated by the
California Labor Code, the California Insurance Code, and the
California Code of Regulations, and was administered by the California

Department of Industrial Relations.,
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14. CWCS benefits were administered by the employer, an insurer,
or a third party -administrétor. The CWCS required.'claims
administrators to authorize and pay for medical care that was
“reasonably required to cure or relieve the injured worker from the
effects of his or her dnjury,” and includes medical, surgical,
chiropractic, acupuncture, and hospital treatment. |

15. California law, including but not limited to the california
Business and Professions Code, the California Insurance Code, and the
California  Labor Codé, prohibited ' the offering, 'deiivering,
soiicitiﬁg, or receiﬁing of anything of value in return for referring
a patient for ancillary medical procedures.

ANCILLARY MEDICAL PROCEDURES

16, - Extracorporeal Shockwave Therapy (“shockwave”) as used by
defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced
Radiology was a treatment modality that used low enefgy gound waves to
initiaté tissue repair of mﬁsculoskeletal conditions. The treatment'.
was not a surgical procedﬁre and patients were not placed under
anesthegia. Shockwave had been approved by the Federal Drug
Administration only for the treatment of chronic lateral epicondylitis
(tennis élbow) for which the symptoms were unresponsive to standard
therapy for more than six months.

17. Nerve conduction veldéity {“NCV¥) was_a test employed in
electrodiagnostic medicine to see how fast electrical signals move
through a nerve and was used to diagnose nerve injury of damage,

18, Eledtfomyography | {(“EMG") was a test employed  in
electrodiagnostic medicine to evaluate and record the electrical

activity produced by skeletal muscles and was used to diagnose nerve
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injury or damage; an EMG was often performed in conjﬁnction with NCV
testing.

19. Diagnostic imaging services include magnetic regonance
imaging {“MRI") .

Count 1
. CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT HONEST SERVICES MAIL FRAUD
AND VIOLATE THE TRAVEL ACT, 18 USC § 371

20. Paragraphs 1 through 19 of £his Indictment are realleged and
incorporated by reference,

21. Beginning on a date unknown and continuing through at least
August 2015, within the Southern District of California énd elsewhere,
defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN
MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING
COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., DESERT BLUE MOCN, and others known and
unknown did knowingly and intentionally conspire with each other to:

a. éommit Honest Services Mail Fraud, that is, knowingly and
with the intent to defraud, devisé and participate in a material
scheme to defraud and to deprive patients of the intangible right to
Dr. A’s honest services, and cause mailings in furtherance of the
scheme, in vicolation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341
and 1346; |

b. commit Mail Fraud, that is, knowingly and with the intent to
defraud, devise a material scheme to defraud, and to Cbtain money and
property, by means of materially false and fraudulent preienses,
representations, promises, and omissions and concealments of material
facts, ahd cause mailings in furtherance of the scheme, in violation

of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341; and
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c. use and cause to be used facilities in interstate commerce
with intent tec promote, manage, establish, carry on, distribute the
proceeds of, and facilitate the promotion, management, establishment,
carrying on, and distribution of the proceeds of an unlawful activity,
that is, bribery in violation of California Labor Code Sections 139.3,
139.32, and 3215, California Business and Professions- Code
Section 650, and California Insurance Code Section 750 and,
thereafter, to promote and attempt to perform acts to promote, manage,
establish, carry on, distribute the proceeds cf, and facilitate the
promotion, management, esﬁablishment, carrying.on, and distribution of
the proceeds of such unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1952(a) (1) (A) and (a) (3) {A).

FRAY,‘TDULENT PURPOSE.

22. It was a purpose of the conspiracy to fraudulently obtain
moﬁey from CWCS insurers by submittiﬁg c¢laims for ancillary procedures
that were secured through a pattern of bfibes to Dr. A, and to those
acting with him and on his behalf, in exchange for the referral of
patients to particular providers of ancillary medical procedures, in
vioclation of Dr, A’s fiduciary duty to his patients, and concealing
from ingurers the bribes that rendered the claims unpayable under
California law. |

MANNER AND MEANS

23. The conspirators used the following manner and means in
pursuit of their frauﬁulent purpése:

a. It was a part of the conspiracy that defendants AGRUSD,
PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING, knowing
that thé payment of per-patient referral fees was unlawful,'offered to
péty bribes to Dr., A, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ,‘ RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT

7
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and DESERT BLUE MOON in order to influence the referral of Dr. A's
workers’' compensation patients to defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK
and other entities operated by defendant GRUSD and PAREDES.

b. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, and DESERT BLUE
MOON agreed to accept per-patient referfal fees from defendants GRUSD,
PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING a.nd Otﬁers -
either directly or indirectly -~ in exchange for the referral of Dr.
A's workers’' compensation patients to defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING
NETWORK and other entities operated by defendant GRUSD and PAREDES.

c. It was a further part of the conspiracy thét defendants
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON
and others arranged to have defendants CGRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA
IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and others conduct ancillary
medical procedures on Dr. A's workers’ compensation patients in
exchange for unlawful per-patient referral fees.

d, It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
concealed from patients, and intended to cause Dr. A to conceal from
patients, the bribe payments Dr. A and defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ,
RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, AND DESERT BLUE MdON received from
defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and WILLOWS
CONSULTING in exchange for referring patients for ancillary medical
procedures, in violation of Dr. A’s fiduciary duty to Dr. A's patients
and in violation of the California Labor Code.

e. It was a further part of the conspiracy that proceeds from
insurance claims paid to defendant CALIFORNIZ IMAGING NETWORK were
funneled through bank accounts by defendants GRUSD and PAREDES to a

bank account in the name of defendant WILLOWS CONSULTING, which

8




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
i?
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

supplied the kickback payments to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN
MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON and others.

£. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, - PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING,
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON
and others obscured the true nature of their financial relationships
in order to conceal their c:'orrupt bribe payments for patient
referrals.

g. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and RUBEN MARTINEZ discussed via telephone
calls, emails, and in-person meetings the workers’'’ compensation
patients who had Dbeen corruptly referred for ancillary medical
procedures to defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK in
exchange for kickbacks.

h. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and RUBEN MARTINEZ utilized
interstate facilities, including cellular telephones and email, in
order to coordinate- the referral of patients for ancillary medical
proceduresg, knowing that such referrals were predicated on unlawful’
per-patient kickback payments. |

i. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and RUBEN MARTINEZ falsely labeled correspondence
concerning lists of workers’ compensation patients who had been
corruptly referred for ancillary medicai procedures as pertaining to
*marketing hours” and similarly misleading phrases.

j.‘ It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS COMNSULTING
falsely characterized the bribes to Dr. A ‘and defendants ALEXANDER

9
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MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, and DESERT EBLUE MOON as
payments for “professional services,” when in fact the corrupt
payments were made exclusively for the referral of patients for
ancillary medical procedures.

k. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING
used the mails to send bribes to Dr. A and defendants ALEXANDER
MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON, in exchange
for the referral of Dr. A’s patients for ancillary medical procedures.

1, It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, DPAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING
used the mails to send bills to insurers for services provided to
patients they had procured by paying bribes to Dr. A and other
conspirators.

ﬁ. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and
others acting on their behalf concealed from insurers and patients the
material fact of the kickback arrangements, whiéh were in violation of
California state law, that led to the referrals.

n. Using the manners and means described above, defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES,, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING
ﬂETWORK, WILLOWS _CONSULTING, _LTNE OF SIGHT and | DESERT BLUE MOON
submitted and caused to be éubmitted claims in excess of $1 million
for ancillary medical procedures procured through the payment of
bribes.

//
//

1/
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OVERT ACTS

24. In furtherance of the censpiracy and in order to effect the

objects thereof, the defendants and other co-conspirators caused the

following overt acts in the. Southern District of California and

.elsewhere:

a. On or about November 7, 2014, defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ
emailed defendant PAREDES a list of patients that had been referred to
defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced
Radiolégy for ancillary medical procedures. | | |

b, On or abéut November 7, 2014, in consideration for the
referral of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING
caused a bribe to be paid to defendants ALEXBNDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF
SIGHT acting on behalf of Dr. A.

c. Cn or about November 25, 2014, defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ

remailed defendant PAREDES a list of'patients that had been referred to

defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced
Radiology for anciilary medical procedures,

-d., . On or about December 3, 2014, in consideration for the
referral of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING
caused a bribe to be paid to defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ and DESERT BLUE
MOON acting on behalf of Dr. A. |

‘&, On or about December 15, 2014, in consideration for the
referral of'patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING

caused a bribe to be paid to defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ and DESERT BLUE

|MOON acting on behalf of Dr. A.

£. On or about December 17, 2014, in consideration for the

referral of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING

11
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caused a bribe to be paid to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF

|[STGHT acting on behalf of Dr. A.

qg. On or about December 17, 2014, defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ
and RUBEN MARTINEZ exchanged emails in an effort to reconcile the
lists of Dr. A’'s patients referred for ancillary medical procédures
and the bribes that had been paid and were due and owing from va:ious
providers, including defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING
NETWORK and WILLOWS CONSULTING.

h, On or about January 12, 2015, defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ and
DESERT BLUE MOON caused payments to be wmade to Dr. A and defendant
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, which represented a portion of bribe payments
received from various providers, including defendants GRUSD, PAREDES,

CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and WILLOWS CONSULTING, while acting on

behalf of Dr. A and his patients.

i. On or about March 2, 2015, defendant GRUSD gent a text

message to Dr. A in order to facilitate a meeting to discuss the

referral of patients for ancillary medical procedures and the payment
of bribes.

g On or about March 4, 2015, defendants GRUSD and PAREDES met
with Dr. A in order to discuss the referral.of patients for ancillary
medical procedures and - -the payment of bribes.

k. On or about March 4, 2015, in consideration for the réferral
of patients, defendante GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING caused
bribes to be paid to Dr. A and to.defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and
LINE OF SIGHT acting on behalf.of Dr. A _.

1. On or about March 6, 2015, defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and
LINE OF SIGHT caused a payment to be made to Dr. A, which represented
a portionr of bribe payments from variocus providers, ineluding

12
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defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and WILLOWS
CONSULTING.

m. On or about April 2, 2015, defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and
RUBEN MARTINEZ caused an emall to be sent to defendant PAREDES with a
list of patients that had been referred to defendants GRUSD, PAREDES,
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced Radiclogy for ancillary
medical procedures.

n, On cor about April 6, 2015, in consideration for the referral
of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING caused =
bribe to be paid to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF SIGHT
acting on behalf of Dr. A

O. On or about June 5, 2015, defendant GRUSD spoke with Dr. a
and confirmed the amount of bribes to be paid for the referral of
patients to defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGTING NETWORK and
Advanced Radiology for ancillary medical procedures.

p. On or about July 16, 2015, in consideration for the referral
of patients réferred, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING
caused bribes to be paid to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN
MARTINEZ, LINE CF SIGHT and DESERT BLUE MOON acting on behalf of Dr. A
All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371,

Count 2 _
HONEST SERVICES MAIL FRAUD, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1341, 1346 AND 2

25, Paragraphs 1 through 19 cof this Indictment are realleged and
incorporated by reference.

26. Beginning on a date unknown and continuing through at least
August 2015, within the Southern District of California and elsewhere,
defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN

MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING

13
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COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and DESERT BLUE MOON knowingly and with
the intent to defraud, devised a material scheme to defraud, that is,
to deprive patients of their 'intangible right to Dr. A's “honest.
services. - |

27. Paragraphs 22 through 24 of this Indictment are realleged
and incorporated by reference as more fully describing the scheme to
defraud, that is, to deprive patients of their intangible riéht to
Dr. A’'s honest services, |

28. On or about March 10, 2015, within the Southern District of
California and elsewhere, defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES,
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL
GROU?, WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY, LINE OF SIQGHT, INC., and DESERT
BLUE MOON, for the purpose of executing the scheme and attempting to.l.
do so, knowingly caused the following mail matter to be placed in a
post office and authorized depository for mail matters to be‘delivered
by the United States Postal Service: a claim for reimbursement for
ancillary medical procedures for J. F. secured through the payment of
bribes to Dr. A and those acting on his behalf.
All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341, 1346
and 2. |

Counts 3-8
TRAVEL ACT, 18 USC §§5 1952(a) {1) (A), ({(a)(3){A) AND 2

29. Paragraphs 1 through 19 are realleged and incorporated by
reference.

30, Beginning on date unknown and continuing through at least
August 2015, within the Southern District of Califoxnia and elsewhere,
defendants ~RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN

MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING

14
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COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and EESERT BLUE MOON knowingly used and
cause to be used facilities in interstate commerce with the intent to
promote, manage, establish, carxry on, distribute the proceedé of, and
facilitate the promotion, management, establishmentf carrying on, and
distribution of the proceeds of an unlawful activity, that is, bribery
in violation of California Labor Code Sections 139.3, 139.32, and
3215, California Business and Professions Code Section 650, and
California Insurance Code Section 750 and, théreafter, to promote and
attempt to perform acts to promote, manége, establish, carry on,
distribute the proceeds of, and facilitate the promotion, management,
astablishment, carrying on, and distribution of the proceeds of sﬁch

unlawful activity as follows:

Ct | - Date Use of Fadility in Acts Performed Thereafter

Interstate Commerce
Defendai 2

prodedutas

Defendant ALEXANDER
MARTINEZ emailed defendant |and WILLOWS CONSULTING
PAREDES a list of patients |caused bribes to be paid to
that had been referred to defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ
defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, |and DESERT BLUE MOON acting
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK {on behalf of Dr. A on
and Advanced Radiclogy for |[December 3 and 15, 2014,
ancillary medical and to ALEXANDER MARTINEZ
procedures. and LINE OF SIGHT acting on
' behalf of Dr. A on

5 | 11/25/14

December 17, 2014.

Defendants GRUSD, PAREDES
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Date

Use of Facility in

Acts Performed Thereafter

@ﬁSgﬁTI Gﬁf““

Dr.:

37275

Defendént.GRUSD'sénﬁré
text message to Dr. A to

facilitate a meeting to

discuss the referral of
patients for ancillary
medical procedures and the
payment of bribes,

Oon or about‘March 4; 2015,'

in consideration of
patients referred for
ancillary medical
procedures, GRUSD and
PAREDES met with and paid
bribes to Dr. A and to
defendants ALEXANDER
MARTINEZ and LINE OF SIGHT
acting on behalf of Dr. A
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ct Date Use cf Facility in Actp Performed Thereafter.
Interstate Commerce _
9 6/5/15 Defendant GRUSD gpoke on On or about July 16, 2015,
the telephone with Dr. A in consideration of
and confirmed the amount patients referred for
of bribes to be paid for ancillary medical
the referxal of patients procedures, defendants
to defendants GRUSD, GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS
PAREDES, CALIFORNIA CONSULTING paid bribes to
IMAGING NETWORK and defendants ALEXANDER
Advanced Radioclogy for MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ,
ancillary medical LINE OF SIGHT and DESERT
procedures. - | BLUE MOON acting on behalf
of Dr. A
All in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Sectionsg 1952(61)(1)(.7*{)7J (a) (3) (A} and 2.
FORFEITURE ALLEGATION
31. Paragraphs 1 through 30 of this Indictment are realleged and
lincorporated as if fully get forth herein for the purpose of alleging
forfeiture pursuant to Title 18, ~United States ~ Code,
Section a8l{a) (1) (C) .and Title 28, United States Code;
Section 2461 (c).
32, Upon conviction of the offenses of Conspiracy, Honest
Services Mail Fraud and Travel Act as alleged in Counts 1 through 9,
defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXAWNDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN

MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING_NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING
COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and DESERT BLUE MOON ghall forfeit to
the United States all right, title, and interest'in-any property, real
or personal, that constitutes or was derived From proceeds traceable
to a violation of such offenses, including a sum of money equal to the.
total amount of gross proceeds defived, directly or indirectly, from

such offenses.
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33, If any of the above éescribed forfeitable property, as a
result of any act or omissgion of defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO
PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA - IMAGING
ﬁETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT,
INC., and DESERT BLUE MOON: {a) cannot be located upon the exercise of
due diligence; (b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with,
a third.party; (¢) has béen placed beyond the Jjurxisdiction of the
Court; (d) has been substantially diminished in value; or (e) has been
commingled with other property which cannot be divided ‘without
difficulty; it was the intent of the United States, pursuant to
Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p) and Title 18, United
Sﬁates Code, Section 982(b), to seek forfeiture of any other property
of deféndants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN
MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING
COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT,-INC., and DESERT BLUE MOON up to the value of
the forfeitable property described above; |
all pu;suant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 981l(a) (1) ({C),
and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461 ({c).

DATED: November 5, 5015.

A TRUE BILL:

/\/\/7(\)

Foreperson
LAURA E. DUFFY
United States Attorney

{)// M\)  By: W/p@//zé%uﬁ

VA ERIE”ﬁ"%M CAROLINE P. HAN
Agsistant U.8. Attorney ' Assistant U,8. Attorney
‘A.’J. 11/

FRED A, SHEPPARD
Agsistant U.8. Attorney
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNMIA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO For e iss Gniy
PEOPLE va Rubsy Marclal Marlinez, Dafondent ’
PLEA OF GUILTY/NO CONYEST - FELORY Caurt Nubar: SCD285519
DA Nutnlssi: ALY 479

;, tl?c defandant in the sbove-entitied case, In support of my plea of Gulity/Mo Contest, pasrsonally decisre ag
oliows:

1. (¥ those charges now flled against ma In this cave, | plaad BUILTY 1o the following
offenses and sdmit the enhancements, aliegations and prior corviclions as follows:
COUNT LHARGE E:NRANCEMENTIN.WGAT!QN
5, a7 83 LG 3218w A
Eﬂ BE B3 A,
PRIORS: (LIST ALLEGATION BECT! ON, CONVIGTIGN DATE, COUNTY, CASE NUMBER, AND CHARG

2. 1heve not been induced tc enter this plea by any promize or representalion of sy kind, axceph: {Sfate
&ny agmanmt w;ﬂr ma ﬁism@f ﬁﬁam&y ) _

3. 1 am entering my plea fresly and voluntarily, without fesr of hvest to me or anyone closely related tome.
4. | underatand that a plea of Mo Conlest i the seme a6 & ples of Gully for all purposes.

5, | am echarand my judgmant s notimpalred. | have not constimerd any drug, sleohol or narcotic within '
the past 24 hours. -

CONBTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

Ba. !understand that | have the right to be represeniad by o iswyer at &l wlages of he procesdings. | can hiramy own & J
lawryer or the Court will appoint & lewysr for me ¥ cannet sfford one.

Lupdemtand that as o all changss, slisgetions and prior convictons filed againet me, ami o to ﬁw fm:ts ﬁmt
myr km wdad to Inorowse My m@mm e oF i dhe fotues, | aloo haveihe loliowing sonstistional i
o gl up to arter my ples of guliiyine conast:

8ir, | have the right 50 2 oeedy sid nublie trial oy |

Bo. | huve the rght o o
ghvo up this dght.

imgim wip thin right.

8a. | have the dght 1o i &Y
wilniaseds & no cop ma

Y, T eaane gilve up this right.

y Bgaingt e, | now

BORG TR PR, W) PLEA OF QUL TYING CONTERY - FELONY Paga 64
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Dufendent: CABE NUMBER:
Ruben Marcial Merfinez SCLSEE518

72,

7o

7d.

T8,

7.

10.

1.

12
13,

CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF QUILYY OR NO CONTEST

§ urclerstand that | may recelva this maximum sunizhinen) gs a result of tay plee; 7Y B0 vears imprsonment or § 2.7
inprisonsvent phis 8 term of mandatory sunsrvidon; $ s ﬁm::?n% yanrs hgpz;wt»mm b il |
oomprinity supervision, with retum to custedy for evary vickran of @ condition theraod, If | am not sentenced fo
imprisonment, | sy be granted probation for a pevic up to § years or the madmam term of imprisonment,
whilchevar b graatar, As conditlons of probistion | may ba glven up o 5 yaar I jait custody, plus the fine, ar any
other condilions deermed reasonabie by the Court. | undermtand that If ! violste any condition of probation ! can be
santanced to nprsonment Tor the maximurs taem as slated above,

| understand that § must pay & restitution fine ($200 - $10,000}, that | will also be sublsctio a suspendsd fine in the W
e aimout, and thet | must gey full reetiiution to off victima,

[ underatand that my conviclion In this cess will be 2 sariousivislent %ny {"strika"} resulling in mndmey diended of <
probation, substantislly increassd penséties, and 2 tanm in State Prismst In mny fulure felony case.

| understand that if { am not & LS, citlzen, this plee of Guilly/No Conteet ey result in my rerovalideporiation, | T
aogshaalon Trorm admission to the U5, snd denlal of netursliization. Additionsdly, ¥ this plea is 0 an *Aggravebed LG ]
Fagw;zlggg on the back of this form, then | will be deporied, sxcluded from admizsion fo the U.S., and dented

nehurel \

| understanc that my plea of Guilty or No Contoat In this case could result In revocation of my probation, mandstory =77
suparvision, pamie or post-alanse supenvision In other cosse. and consecutive sentences. Mo

Mcy atiomey hes explained o ms thal other posslble consequances of this ploe may b
Leircie app%!wt:la SONSOqUENCeS,)

Loas of driving prvileges 10) Mendstory bnprisorment (260feriovmiprion
y  Comminent 1o Youth {11) Mandatoy Siate Prison . Viclard Falony (o credit
Austhonity - {12} Prasum Imprizonment of max, 15%)
{4y Lifsfime ragletrotion as en {13) Praaumplive State Brison o. Prior Gtrikale) (Mo creglt
M f“"M

{g Longsasutive cantences EQ) Brison prior 8. Limked local cradite
3

arson / suy offunder {14) Sexually Vislent Predstor to g, 20%)
{5) Registration ae & naratic / Lew 4. Marder on/ Br3e8
figs Hfferder {16) PossiblaMimndats (Mo cradi
harmons suppresslon {17 Losg of public nesislense
S 518 A0S sdducalion progienm
19) Ohern,

{B) ok Bossess fireane of
mmtmfﬁm "Z AR R
}7 Blood test and ssiiva sample  {18) Redused contdunifeari
8) Pdorable Gnoressed : cradiis
pinhmant for fifurs
pifonses)

Appesl Rights) | give vight fo appeal the following: 1) denisl of my 1838.5 motlon, 2) issue relsted to sirike 7
%mum PG mmia%%%’{b}-ﬁ} aisd 1170,12), and 3) ai)ny mg stipulated herain.

{Marvay Walver) The santenting hudge maey cohelder my prior eriming history and this entire factus! beckground of L
the cass, including any unfilad, disrissed or alrichen cherges of sllegetions or casas when graating probation, Rl
prdering restitution or imposing sentencs,

{Evakely wabvar} | understend that a2 to sy fact In aggrevation that may be uoed (o Inorense my senisnca on any,,
count or afleguiion 4o the upper or medmum I provided by law, | have the constitutionl vights tated (]
peragrashs 8h-Be. [now pive up thoss dehis end egres Biet the santensing judpe may detenvdss the ssdetencs o
namsximl:m of any fect in sggravetion, either ol the inial sentencing or st any future  Bentsneing in the svent yy
protation Is revoled, '

{Cruz Walver] Nepoliated Disposttion pursuant to PC 1182.8 | understend thet ¥ pending mhencim t &m .' )
arrested foror commit ancther erlime, viclsts any condition of my relasss, orwilifully fall to appesr for my probetion L0t
Intenvigw of my senkancing , tha gerdance potion of thie agresment will be cancellng. 1 will be sentensed
unatditonally, and | will rot be aliowad to witheraw my gulliyine confost pleals). :

{Arbuekie Walver) | ghve up ny Bght fo be eantanced by the judgs who aesedls his ples,
{Probation Rapo) | give up my daht io o A probetion report before sentencing,

STIBC CH 07 (e, 1) FLEA OF BUILTYAG CONTERT - PELONY
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Defendant: EIEE RUMRER:
Ruben Mardisl Martines - DE6E519

4. {Bvidence Diaposal Walver | give up my Intsrest in all non-blolegleal propertylevidence impounded during the |1
invastigation of this ciss except snd scknowledge thet | lsied any propaly w2
hars, | must also flle » cleim with the impoeunding agancy within 80 days sfter pronouncement of Judgment or iy
abillly o makte 2 claim will axpire.

PLER

18. 1 now plead GulityNo Contest and admit the charges, convictions and eflegations described In peragraph 21,
above, §admit et on S detes oy 3 e fucls &3 lo vech cherge end allsgetion)
Ras Albschinet "A” sitd g By stk Gt Nebiay 45 [JIAS

f ¥ bt

4

Ftdd

16. | datiare under penally of parjury that | have read, understood-antHnitiajed each itam above and any e
- aftachad addendum, and waryming on the form and anff o chgdadddndyy is true and corect, (|

Deted: 70 [ 000l .. Detendants Signatwe Lo H
Defendant's Address:
~ Streel
Cly “Hiate 2
Teloohone Number, { 3 _ P
Defendant's Right Thumb Print
ATTORNEY'S STATEMENT

I, the aitorney for the defendant In the above-entitied ¢ase, persansily read and explainsd to the defendant the entins contents of
this plea form and any addendum thersto, | discusesd el charges and poasiile defenses with the delendamt, snd the
consecusnces of By plas, including any. immigration consequences. | pereonally chesived the defendant fill in and inftla! each
Harn, or read and Initlel sach fem lo ackuowisdge hiaer understanding and walvers. 1 observad the defendant date and sign thie

fart and any addendurn. | oenowr In the deferdants plaa snd walver of congtitulional High _ ’ :

EAE (W ¢ i
INTERPRETER'S STA i icable)

|, the: sworm language interprater in this proceading, truly franelsted for the t the anthka
contents of this form and any stteohed sddendum. The wiant indicated undarelanding of the contends of this form and any
addendum end then Initiated and sigeed the form and any addandum. _ _

Chuted:

i Nsmsé Court inferpratar (Blgnature}
_ PROBECUTOR'E STATERENT

The People of the Stata of Califurnia, plaintil, by its aftorney, tha District Atiomey for the Counly of San Disgo, conciss with the
dafsnﬁani‘s/ta of Gulityo Gontast es sel forth ahove. ;_ , o iy
f,é’f

Print Mnm%l ¢ Doty Diste (Shmy

: COURTS FINDING AND ORDER :
The Court, having questionad the deferdiant and defandant’s ativmey conceming the defendaent's plea of GuiliyNo Conibas
atimissions of the pricr eonviclions and allegations, I any, finds that: The defendent understands and voluntarlly and intelilsanily
waives hisfhar constiutionsd rights; the defendard's ples and sdmiseions we frenly and voluniaelly made; the ceferdant
undesstands e netuns of the charges and the conssquences of the plea and admissions; and ther is & factus! basls %or sarme.
Thas Court eccepts the defendant's ples and admissions, dnd the defendant is convicted tharaby,

Linted:

Judigs of the BUPBIEF Coaurt

BEHBES CRUMYY fhiu, %) FLEA OF GUHLTY/RO GOMTEST - FELONY , Pogttela
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AGGRAVATED FELONIES

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON-CYTTZEN FOR AN “AGGRAVATED FELONY” AS DEFINED UNDER 8 U.8.C.
1101 (a){(43), WILd RESULT IN REMOVAL/DEPORT ATION, EXCLUSION, AND DENIAL OF NATURALIZATION,

“AGGRAVATED FELORIES” include, but gre not limited to, the fllowing crimes and eny atiempt or sonsplracy to commit
such crimes, even if the conviction is & wisdemeanor under state faw: [The only exceptlon to the applicebility of state
misdermeancrs 19 where the offense (as listed below) specifically requires a folony conviction.]

i

(Includes ey offeme that s o element the g, atiemnted ves, or threatonsd use of physical forps against the person ay
propeviy of another, of gny moﬂeﬁs& that, by s naturs, invelves asubstantial risk that physical force against the person
or property of another may be usad it the eourse of commaitting the offense. (18 UB.C. §16))

W (Eme;st velilele or vomsel waless veed 28 3 resldenan,) ¥

3 FELON‘Y POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE,

B MISDEMEANOR POSSENSION OF ANY CONTROLLED 3UBSTANCE when the da&ndam bma previousty been
convicted of gnv dmg related offense.

¢ POSSESSION FOR SALE OF ARY CONTROLLED BUBSTANCE

&) BALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

&) THANSPORTATION OF ANY CONTROLLED BUBSTANCE

§ MANUPACTUREMISTRIBUTION OF ANY CQONTROLLED SUBSTANCE AND CULTIVATION OF
MARIJUANA

5. W(MF type-)"

. m&x *
M (the loss to vistim or vistims exseeds $10,000)
NEY LAUNERING (5f soaomnt over S10,008.)

w Wﬁwm e.he tﬁm impﬂ%ﬁ is at doant ona samr, whether or not sny or all of thnt derm s stayed or avapesded 22 the
tHme of seutoncing,

S - "PLEA OF GUILTYANGD GONTEBT - FELONY | -
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URIGH

i | LAURA E. DUEREY |
United States Attorney
2 | FRED SHEPPARD F"..ED
Asgiatant United States Attornay i
sfiCalifornla Bar No. 250781
VALERIE B. CHU APREI 21
4 {{Assistant Unlted States Attorney
California Bar Ne. 241708
5 [|CAROLINE P. HAN
. |Assistant United Stites. Attorney.
g [[California Bar No, 250301 ° ™
Fedaral OFfice Bulldlng .
7 {1880 Front Htreet, Room 6293
San Disgo, Californla SZ101-8853
8 Attorneys for United States of America
9
10 UNITED STATES DISTRICOT CQOURT
11 SCUTHEERN DISYRICT OF CALIFORNIA ,
12 ||UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Case No, 15CR2821-BAS
T4 o, PLES AGREEMENT
151|RUBEN MAR&ZNEZ,
DESERT BLUE MOON, INC.,
16 :
Defandants,
17
18 IT IS HEREBY AGREED between the plalntlff, UNITED BSTATES QF
19 AMERICA, through its counsel, Laura E. Duffy, United States Attorney,
and Fred Sheppard, Valerie H. Chu and Caroline P. Han, Assistant
23- United States Attorneys, and defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ and DESERT BLUE
21 MOON, INC. (Hereafter “Desart Blue Moon®), with the advice and consent
22 lof Michael Berg, counsel for defendant, as follows:
23|//
24 //
W VZi
25
/l
26 7/ :
3] V7 @
287/ _

Plea Agreement Def. Inltials
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i o
THE PLEA
1. This agreement is intended to‘pind the following parties:

a. Defendant Ruben Martinesz;

b, Defendant Desart Blus Moon;

c. The United States Attorney’s Office (“USAOY) as to Criminal
Case Number 15CR2821-BAS pending in the United States
Distriot Court for the Southern District of California
{hereinafter “the federal case”); and

d. The San Diego County District Attorney’s Office (“SDCDAG")
as to Criminal Case Number B5CD255519, currently pending in
the Suparior Court of caiifd&nia, County of San Dlego
{hereinafter “the state case”).

2. This plea agreement cannot bind any other federal, state or
loaal prosaduting, administrative, or regulatory authorities, although
the USAQ or SDCDAO will bring this plea agreement to the attention of
other authorities if requested by Defendants.

3. This plea_agraamant lg part of a “package” disposition. Tor

Defendants to receive the benefits of this agreement, co-defendants:

Alexander Martinesz and Line of Bight, Inc. must agxee 0 a separate
Plea agreement with the UBA0 and SDCDAO and all four defendants must
ehﬁer pleas of guilty, pursuant to thelr respective plea agrcements,
in each federal and gt&ts'case in which they are currently charged no
later than April 18, 2016.

4. With regards to the federal case, defendants Ruben Martinez
and Desert Blue Moon agree to waive Indictment and plead gullty to a

|| superseding Information chavging Conspiracy to Commit Honeat Services

Mall Fraud and Health Care Fraud, in violation of 18 U.5.C. § 1349,
5. In exchange for Defendants’ guilty plea in the federal case,
the USAO agress to: (1) move to dismies the charges in the indictment

‘against Defendants without prejudice when Defsndants are sentenced,

and (2) not prosecute Defendants thersafter on auch dismissaed chargas

unless either Defendant breaches the plea agreament or aither of the

Plea Agreement 2 Daf. Initial
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guiity pleas entersd pursuant to this plea agreement 1s set aside for
any reason. Defendants expressly waive all constitutlonal  and
statutory defenses to the reinstatement of any charges dismissed
pursuant to this agreement.

6. With regards to the state case, Defendant Ruben Martinez
agrees to plead guilty to Counts 2, 5, 37, and 853, charging Defendant
Ruben Martinez with unlewfully accepting and recelving compensation for
referral of patients in violation of California Lebor Code saction
3215, and Count 30, charging Defendant Ruben Martinez with unlawfully
concealing an sevent affecting an insurance claim in violation of
California Penal Code section 530(b)(3). The maximum penalty for the
combined counts ig seven years, elght months in prison and a $90,000
fine.

1. In exchange for Defendant Ruben Martinez’s plea to the
abovre-raferenced flva counts in the state cass, the SDCDAC agrees to
dismiss the remalning counts against him with a waiver pursuant to
FPeople v. Harvey, 25 Cal.3d 754 (1979). The SDCDAO furthariagreea to
reﬁommend that Defendant be sentenced to no more than six ysars, four
months  in prison to be sgerved concurrently with his sentence in the
fe@e:al case, that he receive the standard restitution fine, and that
the court ordsr full restitution, A copy of the written and signad
plea sgresment in the state case is 1naorparated‘herain.‘

1
HATURE OF THE OFFENSK

A. FEDERAL CASE; ELEMENTS EXPLAINED

Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon understand that
the offense to which Defendants are pleading gﬁilty has the following
elements: ) ' '

Conspirscy {18 U.8.C. § 1349]

1. There was an agrgsment betwesn two. oxr more persons o
commit Honest Services Mail Fraud and Health. Care
Fraud; and

Plea Agreement
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2.

LT MO Jarvletm N Rr i E b

The defendant entered into the agreement knowing.of at
least oné of its objects and intending to lhelp
accomplish lt.

Honeat Services Mall Fraud [18 U.S5.C. § 1341 and 1346]

i.

MN8N N RN N R M e R 3
o - o N s g KRR S 8 - Oy Ul_

The defendant devised ox knowingiy participated in a)
8chem$_to deprive a victim of his or her right to a|

doctarfs honast services;

The scheme consisted of soliciting and facilitating the|
raceipt of kickback payments from suppliers of health~ |

care services and products to be pald to the doctor in
exchange for referrals;

The doctor, as a healthcare professional, owed a

Fiduclary duty to the victlnm;

The defendant acted with the intent to defraud by
depriving the wvictim of his or her right %o the
doctor’s honest services;

The defendant’s mct was material; that is, it had a

natural tendency to influence, or was capable of:

influencing, a person’s acts; and
The defendant used, or caused somecne to uge, the malls

to carry out or to attempt to carry out the scheme or
plan.

Heath Care Fravd [1B U.5.C. & 13471

10

2.

3.

. The defendant acted willfally and intended 1

‘lPlga Agreemant

The defendant knowingly executed, or attempted to |
execute, a scheme or artifice to defrausd a health-care
banefit program, or to cbtaln money or propartf owned
by, or under the custody or control of, a health-care

benefit program by means of false or fraudulent
pretensas, representatlons, or promises.

The false or fraudulént pretenses, representations, or
-pramiées'related to a naterial fact.

Def. Tnit
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B L

4. The defendant did so in connection with the delivery
of or payment for health-care benefits, items, or
services.:

Corporate Criminal Liability
pDefendant Desert Blue Moon acknowledges that a corporation is

responsible for the acts of its agents or employees, done within the
scope of their authority. The defendant furtherx acknowledgeé that the
acts of a corporation’s agent or employee are within the scopa of his
or her authority if those acts are done on the corporation’s behalf or
for its benefit in the performance of the agent’s general duties.
B. FEDERAL CASE FACTUAL BASIS: ELEMENTS UNDERSTOOD AND ADMITTED
Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon have fully discussed
the facts of the federal case and the state cases with defense

counsel. Defendants have committed each of the eslements of Conspiracy
to Commit Honest Services Mail Fraud and Bealth ' Care Fraud, in
violation of 18 U.5.C. § 1349, and admit that there is a factual. basis
for the guilty pleas in the federal case. Specifically, both
defendants admit:

s Defendant RUBEN MARTINEZ worked as a marketer for Dr. Steven
Rigler, soliciting patients for treatment at Dr. Rigler’s clinic in
Calexico, California. Defendant RUBEN MARTINEZ owned and operated
defendant DESERT BLUE MOON, a professional corporation incorporated
in Nevada. |

2. The California Workers’ Compensation System (“"CWCS5¥)
required that employers in California provide workers’ compensation
benefifs to thelr employvees for qualifying injuries sustained in the
course of their employment, ﬁnde: the CWCS, all claime for payments
for services or benefits provided to the injured employee, including
medical and legal fees, were billed directly to, and paid by, the
insurer. CWCS benefits were administered by the employer, an insurer,
or a third party administrator. The CWCS required claims
administrators to authorize and pay for medical care . that was

“reasonably required to cure or relieve the injured worker
5
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effecta of his or her injury,” and includes medical, surgical,
chiropractic, acupuncture, and hospltal treatment. CWCS Insurers were
private. plans, affecting commerce, under which medical benafits,
items and services were provided to individuals, and therefore wers
“health care benefit programs” under 18 U.§.C., § 24(b).

3. From 2012 through August 2015, within the Bouthern District
of California and elsevhere, defendants RUBEN MBRTINEZ and DESBERT
BLUE MOON knowirigly and intentionally agreed with each other and with
others, including RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ,
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONBULTING dOMEBNY,
and LINE OF BIGHT to commit the offenses of Honest Services Mall
Fraud, in violatlon of 18 U.8.C. §§ 1341 and 1346, and Health Care
Fraud, in violatlon of 18 U.5.C. § 1347. '

4, A purpose of the consplracy was to fraudulently obtain money
from California Workers’ Compensation System (YCHCS”) Insurers by
submitting claims Ffor ancillary procedurss that were securad through
a pattern of bribes to Dr, Rigler, and to those acting with him and

- on hié_behalf, in e=xchange for the referral of patlents to paiticular

providers’ of anclllary medical procedures, in violation of Dr.

. Riglexr’s flduclary duty to his patlents, and concealing from insurers

' the bribes that rendered the .claims unpayable under Californis law.

- 5. It was a part of the'conspiracg that defendants ALEXANDER
MARTINRZ, RUBEN MARTIWEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, and DESERT BLUE MOON ag;aed
to accept per-patlent referral fess from co~dsfendan£a‘ GRUSD,
PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and others =-.
either diramtly'nx indirectly - in exchange for the referral of Dxf
Rigler’s workers’ Compensation patients to defendant CALIFORNIA
IMAGING NETWORK &nd other entities operated by defendant SRUSD and
PAREDES.

6., It was & further part of the conspiracy that defendantas
ALEXANDER MARTIWEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON
and others arranged to have defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA

IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and others condugt

Plaa Agresment . § Def. Inigd
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medical procedures on Dr. Rigler’s workers’ compensat:l:on patients in‘-
exchange for unlawful per-patient referral fees.

R F It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
concealed from patients, and intended to cause Dr. Rigler to conceal
from patients, the bribe payments Dr. Rigler and defendants ALEXANDER
MARTIﬁEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, AND DESERT BLUE MOON
received from defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK
and WILLOWS CONSULTING in exchange for referring patlents for
ancillaty medical procedures, in violation of Dr. Rigler’s fiduclary
duty to Dr. Rigler’s patients and in violation of the California
Labor Code. .

B. .It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING
used the mails to send bribes to Dr. Rlgler and defendants ALEXANDER
MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON, in
‘exchange for the referral of Dr. Rigler’s patients for ancillary
medical procedures. '

9. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING
used the mails to send bills to insurers for services provided to
patients they had procured by paying bribes to Dr. Rigler and othe-r
éonspirators.

10. It was a further part of the conapiracy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and
others acting on their behalf concealed from insurers and patients
the material fact of the kickback arrangements, which ﬁéra in
vielation of California state law, that led to the referrals.

11. Using the manners and means describesd above, defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA
IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING, LINE OF SIGHT and DESERT BLUE
MOON submitted and caused to be submitted claims in excess  of %1
million for ancillary medical procedures procured throu payment
of bribes.

Plea Agreement ' Def. Initial
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12. Defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ and DESERT BLUE MOON further
admits that each of the allegations at paragrasphs 21, 22, 23, and 24
of the Indictment in the federsl case are true and correct and can be .
proven bevond a reasonable doubt, including each of the manner and
means in paragraph 23, and each of the overt acts listed in paragraph
24. In particular, Defendants admit that on or about March 6, 2015,
defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF SIGHET caused a payment. tn
be made to Dr. Rigler, which represented a portion of bribe payments

from various providers, including defendants GRUSD, PAREDES,

CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORE and WILLOWS CONSULTING.

13. In addition, bDeafendants RUBEN MARTINEZ and DESERT BLUE MOON
agree and admit that the intended loss encompassed by their total
criminal conduct exceeded $1.5 million.

C. STATE CASE: ELEMENTS EXPLAINED

Defendant Ruben Martinez understands that the offenses to which
he ls pleading gullty in the state cases have the folliowlng elements:

Unlawfully Accept Compensatlion for Referral of Patients -

[Callfornia Labor Code, Beotion 3215]
1. Defendant Ruben Martinez did, acting individually, or
through thair eamployees or agents offer, daliver,
racelve or acoept)

2. Any conslderatlon to or from any person;
3, As compensation or inducement fox;
4. The refarral of patients, clients or customers to
perform or obtain services orlbenefitai and
5, Involving workers’ compensation insurance.
Unlawfully Conceal an Eventlﬁffecting-an Insurance Claim,
[California Penal Code, Saptblon 550 (k) (3)]
1. Defendant did, knowingly assist, oxr conspirs with
another, to conceal or fail to disclose the occurrence
of an event; ' '
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2. That affects any person’s right or entitlement to an
insurance benefit or payment, or amount of beneflt ox
payment; and

3. With the specific intent to defraud.

D. STATE CASES FACTUAL BASES: ELEMENTS UNDERSTOOD AND ADMITTED
pefendant Rubsn Martinez has fully discussed the facts bf.the
state case with defense counsal. pefendant: Ruben Martinez has

committed each of the elements of unlawfully receiving and accepting
compensaticn for referral of patients, in wviolation of California
ILabor Code, Section 3215, and unlawfully concealing an event
affecting an insvrance clalm, in violatlon of Californla Penal Code,
Saction 550(b) (3), and adnits that thers is & factual basis for the
guilty ples 1in the state case. The following facts are true and
undigﬁutedz

Between December 16, 2012, and July 16, 2015, Alexander Martinez
_énq Defendant Ruben Martinez did unlawfully receive and accept ‘thirty
four ' checks totaling approximately 8150,000 prepared by Gonzale
Paredes and signed by Dr. Ronald Grusd as compensation for refexring

Diege, Bacondido and Calexlco clinics.
on or about December 28, 2012, June 7, 2013, September 15, 2014,
and July 16, 2015, respectively, Alexander Martinez and Defendant
Hkuben Martinez did unlawfully receive and accept chéck numbhars 1986,
2282, 3095 and 3518 for §5,760.00, $9%,500.00, §8,600.00 and
49,500,00, resgectiﬁely, prepared by Gonzalc Paredes and signed by
RONALD GRUSD as compensation for referring workerxs’ compensation
patients of Dr, Rigler from Dr. Rigler’s Calexico clinic.
on oxr about and betwsen December 16, 2012, and Novembex 27,
2015, Alexander Martinez and Defendant Ruben Martinez did unlawfully
aid and abet and conspire with Dr. Ronald Grusd and Gonzalo Paredes
td- fraudulently bill at least thirteen insurance companies for
EMG/NCV, MRI, and sho¢kwavé testing of wnrkers'.compensag)wxg;atients

‘Plea Agreement 9 paf. Tnitikls £/ -

-“workera"campenﬂation patients of Dr. Rigler from Dr. Riglér’u San
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of Dr. Rigler from Dr. Rigler's San Dlego, Escondido and Calexico
clinies by concsaling the payment of xlckbacks for these patients.

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015,
Alexander Martinez and Defendant Ruben Martinez did unlawfully aid
and abet and conspire with defendants Dx. Ronald Grusd and Gonzalo
Paredes to fraudulently bill State Compensation Insurance Fund (3CIF)
for Shockwave testing of workers’ compensatlon patients of Dr. Rigler
from Dr. Rlglerfs Calexico clinic by concealing the payment of
kickbacks for these patients.

IIT
PENALTIES

X, TFEDERAL CASE

The defendants understand that Consplracy to Commit Honest
Sexvices Mall Fraud, in wiclation of 18 U,8.C..§ 1349, to which the
ﬁefendants are pleading guilty in the foderal case carries the
ﬂoliowing penaltles a8 to Defendant Ruben Martinez:

© A, a maximum 20 yesrs in prilson;

B. a megimum $250,000 fine;

o8 a wandatory special assaessment of $100 per count; and

D, a term of superviged releaas of 3 years. Defendant Ruben
Martinez undergtands that failure to comply with any of the
conditions of supervised release may result in revocation of
supervised release, reguiring defendant to serve in prison,
upon any such revecation, all or part of the atatutory
maximum term of supervized release for the offense that
resulted in such term of supervised release.

E. an order from the Court pursuant to. 18 U.8.C. § 3663A that
Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert .Blua Moon - make
mandatory reatitution to ¢he victims of the offense of
conviction, or the estate(s) of the victims(s). Defendants
Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon understand that the
Court shall .also order, 1f agreed to by the in this

| Flea Agreement 10 Def. InItTal




14

15

16}

17
18

13
20

21
22
23
24
25
26
23
28

Case 3:15-cr-02821-BAS Document 105 Filed 04/21/16 Page 11 of 27

Ut manet s wion 4wk

plea agreement, zrestitution to persons other than the

victime of the offense of conviction,

F. an order of forfeiture of any property, real or personal,
which constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to

| the offense.

The defendants understand that Consplracy -to Commit Honest
”‘Serviées*Mail Fraud;, in violation of 18 U.8.C. § 1349, to which the
Idéfendants are pleading guilty in the federal case carries :the

following penalties as to Defendant Desert Blue Moon:’

A. a maximum S years of probation, and a minimum of 1 year of
probation;

B. a maximum Ffine of $500,000, or twice the gross gain or loss
derived from the offense; _

C. a mandatory special assessment of $400 per count;

D. an order from the Court pursuant to 18 U.S5.C. § 3663A that
defendant make restitution to the victim(s) of the offense
6f conviction, or the estate(s) of the victims(s); and

E. forfeiture of all property that constitutes or is derived
from proceeds traceable to the offense to which Defendant

] is pleading guilty (18 U.S.C. § 981(a) (1) (C) and 28 U.8.C.
§ 2461 (c)). .

F. Defendant understands that the Court may also order, if
agreed to by the parties in this plea agreement,
restitution to persons other than the victim(s) of the-
offense of conviction.

Iv
FJ | DEFENDANT'S WAIVER OF TRIAL RIGHTS IN FEDERAL CASE
The defendants understand that this . gullty plea waives the right
to: .
u A. Continue to plead not guilty and require the Government to
prove the elements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt;
B. A speedy and public trial by jury:
Cs The assistance of counsel at all stages of trial;
Plea Agreement 4 Daef. Initi
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:

D. Confront and cross-exgmine adverse witnesses;

o]

Testify dnd present evidence and to have witnesses testify
on behalf of defendant; and,
F. Not testify or have any adverse inferences drawn from the

failure to testify.

The defendants knowingly and voluntarily walve any righta and
defenses the defendants may have under the E;gcesaive Fines Clause qf
the I-fighth Amendment to the United States Constitution -to the
forfeiture of property in this proceeding or any elated olvil

proceeding.

P A T TR TR N

i
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11
The USA0 and SDCDAO represent that any information establishing
the factual innocence of Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue

12

13 Moon known to the undersigned prosecutors in this case has been "tu::ned

14 lover to defendant. Tha USAQ and SDCDAO will continue to provide such
15 l:i.:n;1!(.:1:1:::&&1;’:.1m sstablishing the factual innocence of defendant.
16 Defendants Huben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon understand that if
17_l tﬁhis c&se ;:mcaadad to trial, the USAD and BDCDAD would bhe required to
!pmvide impeachnent information relating to any Informants or other
wiﬁnesaaa. In addition, if defendant raised an affirmative defense,
the USAO and SDCDAO would be required to provide infyrmation in its
29 {possassion tha_t‘ supports such a defense, Dafendants Ruben Martinez
21 ||and Desert Bilue Moon acknowledge, however, that by -pleading gu:i.lty, '
94 |{the defendants will not Dbe provided this information, Aif any, and
23 defendant alsc walves the rlght to this information. Finally,
lBeIen¢ants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon agree not to attempt to

withdraw the guili;y plea or to file a collateral) attack basad on the
exlstence of this information.
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vI
DEFENDANTS’ REPRESENTATION THEAT GUILYY
PLEAS ARE KHOWING AND VOLUNTARY

Defendants Rubsn Martinez and Desert Blue Moon represant. that:

A.

I Piea Agreement

Defendants Ruben Martinez and Dasert Blus Moon have had a
full opportunity to discuss all the facts and clrcumstances
of this rpase with defense counsel and have a clear
understanding of the charges and the consequences of thia
plea. Both defendants understand that, by pleading gulliy,
the defendants may be giving up, and rendered ineligible to
recaive, valuveble government benefits and civic rights, su;::h
as the right to vote, the right to possess a fireanm, the
right to hold office, and tha »ight 'to serve on a jury.
Dafendante Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon further
understand that the conviction in this case may subject
defendant to various collateral consequences, including but
not limited to deportation, removal or other adversej
immigration conseguences; revocation of probation, parole,
or asupervised release In another c¢asey debarment from
government contracting; and suspension or reavocation of a
professional license, as well as civil and administrative
Ilability, none of which will serve as grounds to withdraw
defendant’s gullty piea. o
No one has made any promlses or offered any rewards in
return for this gullty plea, other than those contalned in|
this agreement or otherwise disclosed to the Couxt.

Wo one has threatened Defendants Ruben Martinez or Line
of Blght or Defendant Ruben Martihez'a famlly to lnduce
this guilty plea,

Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon are pleading
guilty because in truth and in fact the defendanta ave

gpilty and for no other reason. '

Def. Initidisl £/
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VIX
ARPLICRBILITY OF SENTENCING GUIDRLINES

Defendants underatand the sentenne lmposed will be based on the
factors set forth iIn 18 v.8.0. § 3553(a). Defendants understand
furthar that in imposing the sentence, the sentencing Jjudge must
aunault. the United States Sentencing Guldelines (Guidelines) and take
them into account. Dafendants have discussed the Guidelines with
ydefense counssl and understand that the Guidelines are only advisory,

not mandatory, and the Court may impose a seitence more severe or less

severe than otherwise applicable under the Guidelines, up to _t.h'e.-
maximm in the sbatute of conviction. Defendants understand further
that the sentence cannot be determined until a preaentence reaport has
been prepared by the U.5. Probation 0ffice and both defense counsel
and the USAC have had an opportunity to review and challenge. the
presentence repert. Nothing in this plea agreement shall be construed
as limiting the USAO’s duty to provide complete and accurate facts to
the district court eand the U.S. Probation Office.
= .
EENTEGCE I8 WITHIN 30LE nI}unfTIOW QF JULGE

Thisg plea agreement ls made pursuant to Federal Rule ‘of Criminal
H Procsduze 11 (c) (1) {B) » ‘The defendants understand that the sentence is
within the scvle discretion of the seritencing judge. The USAQ has not
made 'and will not make any representation as to- what sentence the
defendants ~ will receive. The defendants understand that the
sehtenci‘nq judge may iwpose the maximum sentence provided by statute, '
and is alsc aware that any estimate of the probable sentence by
defense counsel is a prediction, not a promise, and i not binding on
the Court. Likewlse, fhe recommendation made by the USAO is not

{{pinding on the Court, and it is uncertain at this time what the
258 1t

defendants’ sentence will be. The defendanta also have been advized
and understand. that if the sentencing judge does not follow any of the
parties’ sentencing recommendations, the defendants nevertheless have
ne right te withdraw their pleas.

14 :
Plea Agreement Def., Initim
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racommend the followlng Base Offense Level, Bpecific Offense
Characteristics, Adjustments and Departures as to Defendant Desert
fiBlue Moon: ' ;
L. bage OfLfense Level [§ 2B1.1] T
2. Intended loss more than $1.5 million +16
[US8G $2B1.1(h) (1) (I)]
3. Base Fine - Offense Leval 23 $3 million
[USSG $80C2.4(d)]
4, Culpabiliity Score -3
H [USSG §88C2.5(a)&{g) (2)]
. 5.  Multiplier [USSG $802.6) .6-1.2

26 |
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PARTIES " SENTENCING RECOMMENDATIONS
A. SENTERCING GUIDELINE CALCULATIONS
Although the parties wunderstand that the Guidelines are only
advisory and-just one of the factors the Court will .consider under 18
U.8.C. § 3553(a) in iImpoeing a sentence, the parties will jointly
recommend * the following Base Offense Level, Specific Offense
Characteristics, BAdjustments and Departures as to Defendant Ruben
"Mart:i_.mz:
1. Basa Offense lLewvel [§. 2Bl.1) 7
. Intended loes more than $1.5 million +16
{$ 2B1.1{b) (1) (1)] |
3. Sophisticated Means [§ 2Bl.1 (b) (10} (C)] +2
5. Abuse of Positlon of Trust [§ 3B1.3) +2
6. Accaptancé of Responsibility [§ 381.1j) -3

Although the partles understand that the Guidelines are only
advisory and just one of the factors the Court will consider under 18
IU.S.C._s 3%53(a) in impoaing a sentence, the parties will jaintly

‘ The parties agree that Dafendant Desert. Blus Meon cannot payy,-and|,
is not, likely to be gble geven on an :Lnstallmant plan) to. pay, the

FPlea Agr&emant 13
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‘tederal cese and the state cases, and therefore under U.5.8.6G.

§§ 8C2.2(b) and 8C3.3, will recommend a reduced fine of $20,000.

B. ACCEPTANCE OF RESPONSIBILITY

Notwithstanding paragraph A ahavé, tha USAQ will not be obligated
to recommend any adjustment for Acceptance of Responsibility i1f the
d&fendants engage in  conduet  lnconsistent with acceptance of

.raspunaibility includmgF but not limited teo, the following-

1. Fails to truthfully admit a complete factual basls as
statad in the plea at the time the plea ls entered, or
Falsaly deniéa, or makes a statement inconslastent)
with, the factual basis set forth in this agreement;
2. Falaely denles priox ariminal conduct or convietions;
3. Is untruthful with the Government, the Court o
probaﬁion officer;
4. Materially breaches this plea agreement in any way; or
b. Copteste. or assists any third party in contesting the
forfeiture of property(les} seized in connection with
this  case, and any property(les) to which the
defendant has agreed to forfelt.
d{ ' FURTHER ADJUSTMENTS AND SENTENCE REDUCTIONS
INCLUDING THOSE UNDER 18 U.8.C. § 3553 |
The partlies agree that tha defendants may regquest or reocmhend
additional downward adjustments, - departures, including criminal
history departures undex USEG § 4Al.3, or sentence reductions under L8
U.8.C. § 3553. The USAO may opposs any downward adjustments,
departures and sentence reductions not set forth in Sectien X,
paragraph A above.
D. - NO AGREEMENT A8 _TO CRIMINAL HISTORY‘CRTEGORY
The parties have e agraement es to Defendant Ruben Martinez’s
Criminél History Category.
E. “FECTU&L BASIS” AND “RELEVANT CONDUCT™ INFORMAT ION
The parties agree that the facts in the "factual bagis® paragxaph

of this agroument. as to the federal and state cases are true, a«m-may
16 0/

Ples Agreement
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be considered as “relevant conduct® under USSG § 1Bl.3 and as the
nature and circumstances of the . offense under 1B U.S.C. % 3553(a) (1}.

F. PARTIES’ RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING CUSTODY

The parties aérea that the USAG will recommend that Defendant
Ruben HMartinez be sentenced within the advisory guideline range
calculated above. In light of the relative culpability of Defendant
Desert Blue Moon and Defendant Ruben Martinez’s contemporansous guilty
plea li the federal and state cases, the parties agrea that the USAC
will recommend that Dsfendant Desert Blue Moon pay a $20,000 fine.

G. SPECIAL ASSESSMENT/FINE/RESTITUTION/FORFEITURE

1. Speclal Asssasment
The parties will jeointly recommend that Defendant Ruben Martinez

Hpay & ,qpaq;al gssegement ip the amount of .$100.00 :per  count:of

conviction in the faderal case to be paid forthwith at the time of
sentencing. The partiss will jointly xacommand'that_anandant Desert
Blue Moon pay & speclal assessment in the amounﬁ of $400.00 per count.
of conviction in the faderal case to be paid forthwith at the time of
santencing. The- special assessments shall bea raid through the office
of the Clerk of the District Court by bank or cashier’s check or mpnéy
order made payable to the ™Clerk, Unlted States District Court.”
2. Restitution

The parties do not recommend imposition of a restitutlon order  in
the federal case in light of the difficultj of determiring the loss |
aausad by Defendant’s conduct to the victims. Bee 18 USC .§
35834 (o) (3).{B). However, asny agreement as to restitution hereiﬁl
applies only to the federal case and not the satate case. The

|defendants understand that restitution may be ordered in the Stﬁté

case pursuant to Defendant Ruben Martinez’s guilty plea in that,

Hmatter,

. "-'3 4 E'iI!’Q
'The partles do not racommend imposition of a fine upon Defendant
Ruben Martinez due to this defendant’s limited financial prospects and

Flea Agreemant 17
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ﬁééﬁénsibility 'ﬁzogfam, likely would exceed the amounts that could
rea-onably be expacted to bs collected. As outlined above, the
parties will recommend that Defendant Desert Blue Moon pay a fine of
$20,000 within 60 months of pleading guilty. These fines shall be
pald through the Office of the Clerk of the District Court by bank ox|
cashier’s check or money orxder made payable to the “Clerk, United
States Diatfict Count.”
4. Forfeiture

- Defendants agree to forfelt $29,987.28 in funds from the Wells
Fargo'bank account xxx-0510 in the name of Defendant Desert Blue Moon,
Inc. as proceeds of their illegal conduct. Defendants consent and
agree to the entry of an Order of forfeiture for such proparty and
walve the reqiirements of Federal Rules of Criminal Eroce&ure 32.2 and

'43(a) regarding notlce of the forfelture in the charging instrument,

announcemant of the forfalture at sentencing, and incorporation of the
forfaiture in the judgment. Defendants understand that the forﬁeiture

{lof as=zets ig part of the sentence .that may be imposed'in this casa and

walves any fallure by ths Court to advise Defendants of this, pﬁrsuant,
teo Rule 11(k) {1) (J), at the time the Court accepts the gullty plea.
Defendants further agree to waive all constitutional and
atatutory challenges in any manner (including direct appeal,. habeas
corpus, or any other means) +to any forfeiture carried out in-
accoxdance, wibh thils agreement on any grounds, lncluding that the
forfelture c¢onstitutes an excessive fine or punishment. Defendants

'aqree te take all steps as regquested by the United States to _pass

cleai title to forfaitsble awsets to the United States, and to testify|
truthfully in any judicial forfeiture proceeding.

Defendanta agree that the forfeiture provisichs of this plaa
agraement ars intended to, and  will, survive Defendants,-
notwithstanding the abatement of any underlying £criminal coﬁvi¢tion-
after the sexscution of this agreement. The forfeitability of .any

'particular Proparty pursuant to this agreement shall be determined asm
if Defendant had survived, and that determination shall bhe

ing
. 18 '
Plea Agreemant Dat.




O ORI O R CONNE TR CR T e RS S T T I SR R R
® Y.n O A W RN F S W ®E S s W N O
———

R R . Y B o o I e

Case 3:15-6r-02821-BAS Document 105 Filed 04/21/16 Page 19 of 27

O Y e LI Y T

upon Defendants’ helxs, successors and assaigns until the agreed
forfeiture is collscted in full.

H. SUPERVISED RELEASE

1f the Court impeoses a term of supervised release as to Pefendant
Ruben Martinez, the parties agres that Defendant Ruben Martinez will
not seek to reduce or terminate sarly the term of supervised release.

m .
DEFENDANT WALVES ARPEAL AND COLLATERAT ATTACK

A, HAIVER OFIRIGHT 10 APPEAL CONVICTION

In exchange for the concessions by the USAD.and SDCDAC in this
plea agreement, Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon waive,
fo the full extent of the law, any right to appeal the convictions and
sentence in either the federal or state cases.
- B. WAIVER OF RIGHT TO COLLATERAL ATTRCK

Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon waive, to the full
extent of the law, any rxight to collaterally attack the conviction

) and/or sentence, sxcept for a poat~conviction eollateral’ attack based

on a.claim of ineffective assistance of counsel. .

'C. OBJECTIONS TO UNITED STATES’ RECOMMENDATION

If Defendants. Ruben Martinez or Desert Blue Moon belleves the
recommendation by the 0SA0 or SDXCDAY is net in accoxd with this plea
agreement, the defendants will object at the time of sentencing;
othearwise the objection will be deemed walved.

b4 3
BREACH OF TAE PLEA AGREEMENT
A. MATERIAL BREACH OF PLER AGCREEMENT
pefendantsl Ruben Martinez and Desert Blus Moon acknowlaedge,
understend, ' and agree that if the defendants wviolate or fall' to

berform any of their obligations under this agreement, such violation

or failure to perform will constitute & pmaterial breach of ihis.

|| agreement. .

Plea Agreement ;9
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Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blus Moon acknowledge,
understand, and agree further that the following non-exhaustive list

C @ O~ ;M o W N

of conduct by the defendants unquestionably constitutes a  material

breach of this plea agreement: '

1. Falling to plead gullty pursuant to this agreement;

2. Withdrawing the gullty plea or attempting to withdraw
the gullty plea;.

3. Failing to fully acocept responsibility as established
in Sectlion X, paragraph B, above;

4. Failing, to appear in court:

5. Failing to abide by any lawful court order related to
this case;

6. Appeallng or collaterally attacking the sentence or
convlietlon in viclation of Section XI of this plea
agreemsant; or .

7. Engaging in additional criminal conduct from the time
of arrest until the time of sentencing.

B. CONSEQUENCEES OF BREACH
In. the event of a material breach by either defendant of this

Jplea}. agreement, Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon will

net be able to enforce any of ite provisions, and the USAO and SDCDAC
will be relieved of all obligations under this plea agreement. Fox
exanplea, ‘the USAO or SDCDAO may pursue any. charges inoluding those

B3
. o

: Pléa Agreement’ : 20 Daf.

result of this agreement. Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blug
Moon agree that any statute of limitations relating to such charges is
tolled as of the date of this agreement; . Dafendants Ruben Martinez and
Degert ‘Biue Moon also walve any double deopardy defense to such
charges. In addltion, the USAO or SDCDAO may move to set aside the
da'f‘endé,nt’ gullty pleas. Defendanta Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue

Moon wmay not withdraw thelr guilty pleas based on the, purau:.t of

remedias for their breach by the USAO or -§DCDAO.
XLIT

‘that were dismiesed, promised to be dismissed, or not filed gé a
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COMPLETE WAIVER OF PLER-DISCUSSION BXCLUSION . nmms
In exchange for the c:on::esaions in this agreement, Defendanta
Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon agree that: (1) the stipulated
factual basis statements in this agreement; (ii) any statements made
by the defendants, under oath, at the guilty plea hearings in federal
and sate court; ahd (11i} any evidence derived from such statements,

are admissible against either defendant in the prosecution’s case-in-
chief and at any athai: atage of the proceedings in any prosesution of
or -action agalnst either defendant on the current charges and/or any
otheyr cﬁarges that the USAQ0 or SDCDAO mey pursue against the
defendants. Additionally, Defendanta Ruben Martinez and Deseri Blue
Moon knowingly, wvoluntarily, and intelligently walve any argument
under the Unlted Statea Constitution, any statute, ¥Federal Rule of
Evidence 410, Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 11(f), and/or any
other federal or California rule, that these satatements or any

l1evidence cexrived from these statements should be suppressed or are

inadmissible. The waiver of the aforementioned rightas by Defendants
Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon is effective as soon as the
parties algn this agreement, and iz not contingent upen a federal or

‘Jatate court ultimately accepting the defendants’ guilty pleas.

XIV
SURSTANTIAL RASSYSTANCE
A. .. If Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon attempt to

amglst in ;:lie investigation and prosecution of others, theré is no
fjguarantee that this future  cooperation, if any, will be ' deemed

“substantial,” or whether it will merit a downward departure from the
Sentencing Guidelines.

B. If requested by the USAD or SDCDAO, Defandanta Ruben_

iMartinez agrees to be interviewed agailn by federal and atata law

enforcement agents and attorneys and to tell everything Defendants
Ruben Martinez and Desert Blua HMoon knows about every person invol'fred
prese:ﬂtly or in tha past in the charged criminal offensa(a), as well
as other vioclatlions of law. Defendsnts Ruben Martinez and Dese

o™ lua_




2
3

-

B8

9
10
11
12
13
14
15

16

i
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
21

28

a4 o W

Case 3:15-cr-02821-BAS Document 105 Filed 04/21/16 Page 22 of 27

T

Moon also agrees to produce all documents and other evidence in their'
possession or control related to these violations.

C. Defendant Ruben Martinez agrees not to do any undercover
work or tape record any conversations or gather evidence . unless
'instfucéed by the agent assigned to Defendant. Defendants Ruben
Martinez and Desert Blue Moon can be' prosecuted for any criminal
activity undertaken without instruction.

D. Defendant Ruben Martinez agrees to provide statements under
penalty of perjury and to testify before any federal or state grand
jury, and at any pretrial, trial, or post-trial proceedings in federal

or state court. Defendant will provide complete, truthful,:  and
" accurate information and testimony. Defendant agrees to submit to a

llpolygraph examination to test the truthfulness of Defendant’s

lstatements, upon request by the USAO or SDCDAO.
E. As discussed in section XIII above, the factual admissions

|tin this plea agreement and any statements made by Defendants Ruben

Mar{:inez and Desert Blue Moon at any guilty plea hearings (éa well as
any avidence derived from them) are admissible against the defendants
in this and all future proceedings. However, the USAO and SDCDAO agree
that, if the defendants fully comply with this plea agreement, thej
USAO and 8SDCDAO will not make use of any of thelr statements to law
enfo;rcement in the course of cooperation and during the pariod of
post—plea ‘cooperation in any further prosecution of the defendants for
any offense, or in Defendant’s sentencing as provided in USSG § lBl..B.
}If Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon do rot fully comply
iWith tﬁis plea agreement, all statementa made by the defendanta
bafore, during,. and after this plea agreement, and any leads or
‘evidence derived. from such statements, can be used’ against . the
defendants and are admissible in court.

J- OF, Statements made by Defendants Ryben Martinez and Desert Blue
Ig-!oon pursuant to thls plea agreement are not statements “made in the

course of any proceedings under Rule 11 of the Fede Rules . of

'Pl,ea Agreemant 22 Daf.
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e

Criminal Procedure” and are not statements “made in the course of ﬁlea
discussions.”

B If the USAQ decides that Defendants Ruben Martinez and
Desert Blue ﬁnqn have provided additlonal substantlal assistance after
the  date of this agreement, and have fully -complied with this plea
agreement, it will file & motion for a downward departure under
18 U.8.C. § 3533 and/or USSG § 5K1.1, Defendants Ruben Martinez and
Degert Blue Moon understand that tha starting point for'.any
substantlal asaistance departure will be the pre-departuras Guidéiinea
range. . Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon acknowledge
that even if the USAO makes a motlon, the Court may reject the UBAO'=s
motion and recommendation for departure and refuse to depart downharﬁ,
and neither defendant would be allowed to withdraw thelr guilty pleas.
. JIf the USAO'as decides to make a substantlal aasiatance
motion, 1t will inform the sentencing Judge of:; (1) this .plea
agreement; (2) the nature and extent of any assistance provided by
Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon in the federal and
state cases; and {3) all information in the possession of the USAD
relavant to sentencing.
I. If Defendants Ruben Martinez or Desext Blue Moon provide
materially false, incomplste, or mislesding testimony or information,
or breach this plea agreement in any other way, the USAO or SDCDAD'may
prosecute the defendants in connectlon with all criminal vialatiogé of
Iwhigh ‘the USAO and SDCDAO are aware, as aet forth in Sectlon XII
above, including a prosecutlon for false statements, perjury, and/or
obstruotion of justice. The USAO may also pursus any other ;emedy for
breach of the plas agreement, as set forth in Section XIT above. Any
prosecutxon or sentence resulting from a breach of this plea agreement
may be based on information provided by Defendants Ruben Martinez and
Desert. Blue Moon.

R4
ENTIRE ACREEMENT

Plea Agreement 3 Def.
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The plea agrsement in the state case, which is Incorporated
herein, together with the plea agreement in the feaderal case ambody
the entire agreement batwesn the parties and supersede any other
agreement, written or oral.

XVX
MODEIFICATION OF AGREEMENT NUST BE IN WREITING
¥o modification of this plea agreement shall be effegtive unless

in writing signed by all parties.
IVIY
DEFEHDANT AND COUNSEL FULLY UMNDERATAND AGREEMENT

By algning this agreement, Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert
Blue Moon certify that the defendants have read it. Defendants Ruben
Martinez and Dessrt Blue Moon have discussed the terms of thia
agreement with defense counsel and fully understand its meaning and
effact.

XvIrx
DEFENDANT SATISFIED WITH COUNSEL
Defendanta Huben Martinez and Degert Blus Moon have consulted

with counsel and are satisfled with counsel's representation. This la
the independent opinion of Defendants Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue
Moon, and their counsel did not advise the defendants about what to
say in this regard,

LAURA E. DUFFY _

42 Lt

DATED] |

T R 24 Daf. Initial
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ke Xk % 1A
patEp | VALERIE H, CHU
Apglatant U.8.
jég[ 19k
DATED
BONNIE DUMANIS
_8an Diego County District Attorney
lf/?-;/l{ s -ﬁﬁ %
DATELY “ JOHN PHILDOTT
Deputy District att@rney
4 /[H //f ~
DATED
o/l P 7
DATRED YPERDRO BERNAE
Deputy Digtrict Attorney
4/ 'Zﬂz ol
DATED

IN ADDITION 'TQ THE YFOREGOING PROVIBIONS MO WHICH I AGREE, I SWRAR

UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THE P TN THE SFACTUAL BASIS® BROTION
ABOVE ARE TRUE. / /
mﬁn ; : A RUBEN MARTINEZ

Defendant

Defendant’s S8lgnature: As corporate representative for Defendant Line
of 8lght, I have consulted with counsdel for the defendant and fully
undavstand all rights of the Defendant with respect to t@lea

Ples Rogvoanest a5 Def. Initiszl
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Agreement. Further, I Zfully undsrstand all rights with respect to 18
U.8.C. § 3553 and the provisions of the Sentencing Guidelines that may
apply in this case. I have read this Plea Agreement and carefully
reviewed every part of it with counsel for the dafendant. I understand
}this agresment and wvoluntarily accept it on behalf of

hava valid authority to sign on behal /

DATED RUBEN MARTINEZ
Prealdent
DESERT BLUE MOON, INC.

26

Plea Agresment
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Defense Counsel’s Signature: I am counsel for defendant ‘Line of Sight
in this matter. I have fully explained to defendant’s repreaentative
the Defendant's rights with respect to this Plesa Agreement. Further, I

PR N T N T R
- T

| Plea Agreement

have reviewad 18 U.8.¢C. § 3553 and the Sentencing Guidelines, and I
have fully explained to the defendant the provisions that may apply in
this case. I have carefully reviewed every part of this Flea Agrieement
with the defendant. To my knowlsdge, the defendant's declsion te into
this agreemant is an Informed and voluntary one, and one by agent with
valid authority to sign on behalf of Defendant.

# i lﬁ, | M@E’
pn': Michael Bery

Counsel for Defendant
DESERT BLUE MOON, INC.

27
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA; Criminal Case No. 15CR2821-BAS
- Plaintiff, ORDER |
V.
RUBEN MARTINEZ (4),

Defendant.

No objections having been filed, IT IS ORDERED that the Findings and
Recommendation of the Magistrate Judge are adopted and this Court accepts

Defendant’s plea of guilty to Count One (1) of the Superseding Information.

Dated: May 5, 2016 @ﬁm

C{nthia Bashant
United States District Judge

,15CR2821-BAS
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PEOPLE va Ruben Marcial Martnes, Pefendafbf7 o o T
) . m . 1‘\'.1..1‘..-1.'-‘{

Cowt Humber SCD255510
DA Rumber: ATYY 470

L 1’519 defandant In the above-entitled case, in support of my plea of Gui!tlea Contest, personally declare as
follows:

PLEA OF GUILTYING CONTEST - FELONY

1.  OFthose charges now filed agsingt me in this casa, | plead GUILTY - {o the following /‘“ i
offenses and admit the enhancaments, sllegations and prior convictions as follows:
GOUNT LHARGE ENHANGEMEMT!ALLE@ATION
' 3 LG agiBx4g NAA,
: PG 550(0)3) NA_

PRIORS: (LIET ALLEGATION BECTION, CONVIC 1HON DATE, COUNTY, CABE NUMBER, AND CHARGE)

2. 1have not been induced io enfer this plea by any promise or representation of any kind, exvept: (Sfafe [« Zf:f
. any agmamnt wlih the agsm Aﬁomsy ) R

3. |amentering my plea fresly and voluintarlly, wilhout fear or threat o me or anyone closely related fo me. ﬁ E,:f
4. lunderstand that a plea of No Confest Is the same as a pler of Gullty for ell purposes.

5. | amsober and my judgrment [ not impalred. | have not consumed any drug, aiuohal or narcotic within yg_" )
the past 24 hours, .

GONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

fa. | undarstand that | have the fght to be repressntsd by a lewyer ot 8l stages of the procsedings. 1can hiremy %,'
lawyer or the Gourt will appoint & lewyer for me if | cannot efford one, e

Lunderstand that as to all charges, ellegations and prior convictions flled againet me, and as to any fucts that
inay be used o Increase my sentencs, now ar in the future, [ niso have the following constiiutionsl dalits, which .

wa anfer my ples of gulliymo contest: : _ : Vﬁ
&b, | heva the fght o a apeedy snd pishile tiel by ' ( %’.J '
B¢, Lhavathe ight % goofrant and cross-sxamine all the wilnssses ( }5":-"' |
give un this right. /‘JM{
Bd.lﬂavamenghttommgmm(un!aﬂalchoosatuhasﬁfynnmymbumm N
| inoowr glve up thio right. | /;,,‘)
8e. Ihavethe right to prasent evidense o my behalf andtohaveﬂmwurtsubpuanamy u_g;/
witnesses at na cost 1o ma. l how gm up this right. ot

B ———— 'PLEA OF GUILTY/NG GOMTEST - FELONY ™ age 114




Defendant: ) CABE NUMBER:
Ruban Marcial Martinez” : ISCD555519

. CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GUILTY OR NO CONTEST .

.
7a. | understand that | may receive this meximum punishment as & result of my plea: 7y M0 years imprisonmentor |/ -

imprisonment plus a term of mandatory supervision; $80,000 fins;and__ %/~ years orpostrelease L
community supervision, with retum to custody for every violation of a condition therecf. If | am not sentenced to
imprisonment, I may be grantad probation for a period up to 5 years of the meximum term of imprisonment,
whichever Is greater. As conditions of probation I may ba given up to a year in jail custody, plus the fine, and any

other conditlons deemed reasonable by the Court. | undersiand that if | violate any condition of probation | san be
santenced fo Imprisonment for the maximum term s stated abave, .

7b. | understand that | must pay a restitution fine ($200 - $10,000), that | will also be subject to a suspended fneinthe [ ==
same amount, and thet | must pay full restitution fo afl victims. 2

7c.  lunderstand that my conviction In this casewillbea seﬁoua!vio!antfalurﬁ( (eirike") regulting in meandatory denlal of -2
probation, substantially increased penalties, and & tarm In State Prison in any future felony case. ;]

Ll

%

-t
~L, M
'R

7d. | understand thet If | am not & U.S. cltizen, this plea of Guilty/No Contest rmr result in my removal/deportation, [
excluslon from admizsion fo the U.S. and denial of naturelization. Additionally, i this plea Is to an "Aggravated Iesa )
Felony” listed on the back of this form, then | will be deported, excluded from admission to the U.S., and denled
neturatization, )
- | . <)
7a, 1understand that my plea of Gullty or No Contest in this case could resuft In revocation of my probation, mandatory 7
supervision, perole or post-releasa supervision In cther cases, and consecutive sentences. — <
7f. My attomey has explained to me that other possible consequances of this plea may be: 7
(Clrcle applicable consequences.) Sl
nsecutive sentences Prison prior a, Limited local credits
22; Loas of diiving privileges 10; Mandatory Imprisonment {290/sarfous/prior)
3) Commitment fo Youth 11) Mandatory State Prison b. Violent Felony (No credit
Authority 12) Presumptive Imprisonment or max. 15%))
{(4) Lifetime regietration es an 13; Presumptive State Prison c. Prior Strike(s) (No credit
arson / sax offander 14) Sexually Viclent Predator o meoc. 20%,
(5) Regletration as a narcotic / Law d. Murder onvafter 6/3/88 o
gg:g offender (15) Possible/Mahdatory —=y {No credit) &
@ not possess fireamms of hormone suppression 17 of public essistance s
ammunition freatment 8) AIDS education program . |/ |
/Blood test and sallva sample  (18) Reduced conduct/work 18) Othér; ‘ sy
‘Priorable (Increased credits
punishment for fufura
offenses)
)

8. (Appeal Rights) | give up my right to appeal thefollwvin%: 1) dental of my 1638.6 motion, 2) lesues related to strike {7
ptiore (under PC sections 867(b)-{l) and 1170.12), and 3) any sentence stipulated herein, Y

9. (HarveyWalver) The sentencing judge may consider my prior criminal history and tha entire factual background of
the case, including any unfiled, ad or stricken charges or allegations or cases when granting probation,

count or allegation to the upper or mexdmum ferm provided by lew, | have the canstiutional rights listed in .
paragraphs 6b-Be. 1 now give up those rights and agree that the'sentencing Judge may determine the existence or -
non-existence of any fact in aggravation, elther at the inftial sentencing or at any future sentencing in the evert my
- probation Is revoked, ’ '
11, (Cruz Walver}) Negotiatsd Disposition pursuant to PC 1182.6: | understand that If pending sentencing | em r 7
. arrested for or comunit another crime, violabe any condltion of my releass, or willfully fall to appear for my probation £
interview or my santencing hearing, the sentenca portion of this agreament will be cancelled. ! will be sentenced
unconditionally, and T will not be aikbv-ed to withdraw my guilty/no contest plea(s).

12. (Arbuckle Walver) | give up my right to be sentenced by the Judge who accapts this ples.
13. (Probatioh Report) | give up my right to & full probation report before sentencing.

+ ordering restitution or imposing sentence. -
10. (Blakelywaiver) | understand thet as to any fact in aggravation that may be used to Increasa my sentence on any @

EDBC GRS (Rev, 2/11) PLEA OF GUILTY/NOGC CONTEST - FELONY



Daferdant ' CASE NUMBER:
Ruben Marciel Martinez SCD555519

14. {Evidence Disposal Walver) | give up my interest In ail non-blological properiy/evidsnce impounded during the ' "/
investigation of this case except and acknowledge that If | listed any propery =i,
hete, | must also file a claim with the Impounding agency within 60 days afier pronouncement of judgment or my.
sbillly to meke & ciaim will expire.

PLEA

15. 1 now plead Guiliy/Ne Contest and edmit the charges, convictions end allsgations dascribed In pamgraph #,
abova ladrritthatonmadateacharged I (Dasoﬁbefadsastasachch&:yaandaﬂagaﬂm} i

: .
eacz'ﬁagéwe and any ;,r‘/-.;’*)
y and correct. is_.%;m_

é'“»j\

16. 1 deciare under penatty of pesjury that | have read, uriderstood, an /ir?ma
attached addendum. and Bveryming on the form and any atta ad

ated: 27 b 22/l Defendants Signaturs __ 2"

Defendant's Address: )
Sireet
Chiy : State Zip
Telephone Number: ( ) .
Defendam‘s Right Thumb Print
ATTORNEY'S STATEMENT

I, the attorney for the defendant in the above-entitied case, parsonally read and explained to the defendant the entire contents of
this plea form end any eddendum thereto. discussed all cherges and possible defenses with the defendant, and the
consequences of this plea, Including any.immigration consequences. | parsonally observed the defendant fill Inand Initial each

item, or read and Inktial each ltem to acknowledge his/her understanding and waivers. |1 observed the defe d sign this
form and any addendum. | concur In the defand 's p and wafver stitutloneal rights.
Dated: __<= 76"//{” <, "_:7/ ——

(Pdnt Nama) ’ rney for Defendant ' (Slghatura)
{Circleone: PD/APD/OAC/ '
INTERPRETER'S STATEMENT (If Applicable)
I, the swom language intsrpreter In thls proceeding, truly translated for the e entlre

contents of this form and any attached addendum. The defendant indicated understanding of the contents of this form and any
addendum andt T2 imtialag.and signed the form and any addendts

o —— el S W + e et S
Dated: e :

Aot Name) i N Court Interpreter ' (Signature)
PROSECUTOR'S STATEMENT

' The People of the State of Callfornis, plaintiff, by its attomay, the District Attomey for the County of Diego, concurs with the
defendant’s plaa }Gu‘fly Contest as eat abwa.
ré C-‘}&—n'fﬂ"z \

(Print Deputy Qistrief Attome Signatu
R‘IZS FINDING AND ORD%.R i ©o @

The Court, having questioned the defendant ﬂnd defandant's attnmewgnming the dafendant‘s plea of Guilty/No Contestand -
admissions of the prior convictions and allegations, if any, finds that: The defendant understands and voluntarily and Intelligently
waives his/her constifutional rights; the defendant's plea and admissions ere freely and voluntarily mede; the defendant
understands the neture of the charges and the consequences of the plea and admissjons; and thers Is & fattual basls for same.

The Court accepts the defendant’s plea and admissions, 81d tha defendant Is ?fm thersby.

Judge of the Suparor Court

EUGENIA # HERABIDE
SDEOCRAMNZ (Rev.BHT) | PLEA OF GUILTY/NO CONTEST ~ FELONY Pago 5ol 4




ACGRAVATED FELONIES

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON-CITIZEN FOR AN “AGGRAVATED FELONY® AS DEFINED UNDER 8 U.8.C.
1101()(43), WILL RESULT IN REMOVAL/DEPORTATION, EXCLUSION, AND DENIAL OF NATURALIZATION,

“AGGRAVATED FELONIES” includs, but sre ot linaited to, the following m:iinas gnd any atiempt or conspiracy fo commit
such crimes, aven if the conviction is a misdemeanor under stato law: [The only exception fo the applicability of state
misdemeanors i where the offuse (as listed below) specifically requires o fifony convietion,] _

TOLINCE*

1. ANY CHIME OF LNCE: |
(Fncludes any offeuse that hes s un element the use, attempted vse, or threatensd uso of phiysical force agatnst the person. or

property of another, or suy folony offnss that, by #s natore, mvolves & substantial rlsk fhat physical force aguinst the person

or property of another may be used in the comrse of committing the offonse. (18 US.CL §16))
2 BURGLARY (Except vehicls or vessel nnless used as o residence.) *

4. CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES:
8) FLILONY POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SURSTANCE.

B) MISDEMEANOR POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE when the defendanthas previonsty beon
convicted of auy drog related offense,

£) POBBESSION POR SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUSSTANCE

d) SALE OF ANY CONTHOLLED SUBSTANCE

8) TRANSPORTATION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

§ MANUFACTURE/DISIRIBUTION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE AND CULTIVATION o¥

MARYIFUANA,

! Ferjury o
Ly —-«‘NJ'—!—.L b A PROSTITIITION & LA

16, BEXUAL ABUSE OF A MINOR (Touchiay fs not veguiived, e.g.: Indecent Bxposure,)

17. XHEET (Any type or amsnng)*

LA AR £

e of senfencing,

S ORI (s, Y PLEA OF QUILTY/MNO CONTEST - FELONY Page o 4
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL
(C.C.P. section 1013(a), 2015.5)

I am over the age of 18 years and not a party to the entitled action. My business address is
1515 Clay Street, 18" Floor, Oakland, California 94612.

I served the following documents:

¢ Notice of Provider Suspension — Workers’ Compensation

¢ Indictment in United States of America v. Ruben Martinez (Case No. 15 CR 2821 BAS) -
U.S. District Court (Southern District of California)

o Federal Plea Agreement in United States of America v. Ruben Martinez (Case No. 15
CR2821 BAS) — U.S. District Court (Southern District of California) (which incorporates
plea of guilty/no contest in state case)

e Order in United States of America v. Ruben Martinez (Case No. 15 CR 2821 BAS) — U.S.
District Court (Southern District of California)

e Plea of Guilty/No contest — Felony in People v. Ruben Martinez (Case No. SCD 255519) —
Superior Court of California, San Diego County

on the following person(s) at the following address(es):

Ruben Martinez
38775 Cobblestone Circle
Murrieta, CA 92563

The documents were served by the following means:

[X] (BY U.S. CERTIFIED MAIL) I enclosed the documents in a sealed envelope or package
addressed to the person(s) at the address(es) listed above and:

[X] Placed the envelope or package for collection and mailing, following our ordinary business
practices. I am readily familiar with the firm’s practice for collection and processing correspondence
for mailing. Under that practice, on the same day that correspondence is placed for collection and
mailing, it is deposited in the ordinary course of business with the U.S. Postal Service, in a sealed
envelope or package with the postage fully prepaid.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of State of California that the above is true
and correct.

Executed on March 28, 2017, at Oakland, California.
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CATHY FUJITA-LAM






